
 
 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 
Monthly Meeting 

The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet virtually (see connection info below* and details attached) on 
Tuesday, November 10th, 2020 at 7:00 P.M. 

 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present  
2. Public Comment 

Action Items:  
1. Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Application for 569 SF emergent wetland fill of a human-

made farm ditch for grading associated with the construction of a single family home on 
Brentwood Road (Tax Map 63 Lot 93-5) (Paul Kerrigan, Christian Smith, Jim Gove). 

2. Continued conceptual discussion on the construction of an additional parking/car storage lot for 
the McFarland Ford Dealership on 110 Holland Way (Tax Map/Lot 51-17) at the applicant’s 
request (Wayne Morrill, Jim Gove, Chris Lane). 

3. McDonnell Gate Seasonal Closure 
4. By-Laws Review and Update 
5. E-bike policy  
6. Treasures Report and End of Year Expense Requests 
7. Committee Reports 

a. Property Management  
b. Trails  
c. Outreach Events 

8. Approval of Minutes: October 13th, 2020 Meeting and Site Walk  
9. Correspondence 
10. Other Business   
11. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (12/8/20), Submission Deadline (11/25/20**)  

** Dates revised due to holiday/Town Office building closed. 
 
Andrew Koff 
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Posted November6th, 2020 Exeter Town Website www.exeternh.gov and Town Office kiosk.  
 
*ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

Virtual Meetings can be watched on Channel 22 and on Exeter TV's Facebook and YouTube pages.  
To participate in public comment, click this link: https://exeternh.zoom.us/j/81609612250 
To participate via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 816 0961 2250 
Please join the meeting with your full name if you want to speak. 
Use the "Raise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9. 
More instructions for how to participate can be found here: https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-
town-meetings  

Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues. 

http://www.exeternh.gov/
http://www.exeternh.gov/
https://exeternh.zoom.us/j/81609612250


TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  Nov 5th, 2020  
To:  Conservation Commission Board Members 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
Subject:  Oct 10th  Conservation Commission Meeting  
 
1. Brentwood Rd Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Application:  This subdivision/residential 

development did not require CC review as no buffers were impacted.  It did receive Planning Board 
approval but is going back to review changes in grading in this area.  As our regulations do not afford 
buffer protection for human-made wetlands, no conditional use permit therefore is required. The only 
action required tonight is review of the State application.  The proposed fill qualifies under their 
expedited wetland application process so the applicant is seeking your support for the project/to sign 
in support of the expedited review process. 
 

 Suggested Motion for State Wetland Expedited Application: 
____ We have reviewed this application and have no objection to signing to waive our right to 

intervene in the application as proposed. 
 

____     We have reviewed this application and recommend that the wetland application  
be (approved with conditions) (denied) as noted below: 

 
2. Continued conceptual discussion on parking/car storage lot at 110 Holland Way: This concept 

was before you in October.  The applicant conducted test pits to determine whether the site is 
conducive to porous pavement and modified the parking lot design to minimize buffer impacts. No 
motions/board action is required but the applicant seeks your comments to help determine the best 
approach moving forward. Neither the applicant nor the Board shall be bound by these discussions.  
 

3. McDonnell Gate Seasonal Closure:  As you are aware, we have installed a gate at the entrance to 
the McDonnell Conservation Easement.  Throughout the spring/summer the gate has been 
opened/closed daily by volunteers (Dianne Arnheim, Bruce White and Brian and Laura McSweeney).  
As with last year, I am recommending the board consider closing the gate seasonally to deter misuse 
of the parking lot.  When the gate is closed, there is still the opportunity to park in front of it 
providing fall/winter access to the property. 

 
4. By-Laws Review and Update: Based on recent requests from applicants we have discussed several 

projects conceptually.  Outside of the information review afforded in the state wetland regulations, 
our by-laws do not establish such a process.  Based on the comments at the last meeting, it seemed 
this opportunity was valued enough by both the Commission and the applicants to formalize such a 
process in the by-laws.  I have drafted some language to accommodate that.  There have also been 
some thoughts about what the preferred method for selecting which alternate serves as a stand-in so 
Drew would welcome your thoughts.    

 
5.  E-bike policy: E-bikes are increasing in popularity  and I have had several requests as to whether 

they would be an approved use for Exeter’s trails. 
 

 Henderson Swasey (Fort Rock) has clear deed language that prohibits "motor propelled pleasure 
vehicles".  We regularly apply consistent regulations across adjacent parcels bowing to the more 
conservative use (examples in bike use, hunting) so to date I have been informing people who inquire, 
that it is not an approved use.   
 
Our Town ordinances state: 

• defines bikes as: Every peddled vehicle propelled solely by human power (601)   
• defines motor vehicles as: Every vehicle that is self propelled (100.17b) 
• states no person shall operate a motorized vehicle on posted town conservation land without 

written permission (710) 

https://www.exeternh.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/boards_committees_and_commissions/page/2751/chapter_6.pdf
https://www.exeternh.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/boards_committees_and_commissions/page/5371/ord_chapter_1parking_regulations-rev_4-22-19.pdf
https://www.exeternh.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/boards_committees_and_commissions/page/13751/ord_chapter_7_conduct_regulations_2016july.pdf


The Conservation Commission has adopted a Land Use Policy that prohibits motor vehicles 
and limits bikes to only those defined areas (Henderson Swasey and Oaklands). 

 
It would be helpful to have a policy that clearly defines e-bike use on town trails so I am 
recommending the board consider such a policy.  I believe most significantly based on the deed 
restriction in Henderson Swasey that implementing anything other than a prohibition would be 
challenging to enforce and would diverge from your past practices. 
 

6. Treasures Report and End of Year Expense Requests:  
$150 – ESRLAC 
$150 – SELT  
The $200 for trail wood was generously donated when Dave went to purchase it (actually donated 
closer to $1,000!).  I suggest the board consider using any funds remaining to purchase clapboard or 
other supplies for making repairs to Raynes Barn.     
 

7. Committee Reports/Dashboard: I put together a dashboard (attached) with these items to aid/target 
discussion. Please feel free to contact me with any items you may wish to add.    

https://www.exeternh.gov/bcc/conservation-land-management-management-plans


















































































Porous Asphalt  Pavement for Stormwater Management 
The UNH Stormwater Center         Web: www.unh.edu/erg/cstev/ 

   

Benefits 
and Uses 

 

Porous Asphalt can be used in replace of traditional stormwater management 
measures given the proper conditions. Porous Asphalt’s primary advantages are: 
1. Quantity and Flood Control  
2. Water Quality Treatment 
3. Recharges Groundwater to Underlying Aquifers 
4. Allows for Reduction of Stormwater Infrastructure (Piping, Catch-Basins, Retention 

Ponds, Curbing, etc.) 
5. Suitable for Cold-Climate Applications, Maintains Recharge Capacity When Frozen 
6. Allows for Reduced Salt and Sand Usage Due to Low/No Black Ice Development 
7. Maintains Traction While Wet 
8. Reduced Spray from Traveling Vehicles, Reduced Roadway Noise 
9. Extended Pavement Life Due to Well Drained Base and Reduced Freeze-Thaw 

Disadvantages 

• Requires Routine (Quarterly) Vacuum Sweeping (Vac-Assisted Dry Sweeper Only) 
• Proper Construction Stabilization and Erosion Control are Required to Prevent 

Clogging 
• Quality Control for Material Production and Installation are Essential for Success 
• Accidental Seal-Coating or Similar Surface Treatment Will Cause Failure 

Cost & 
Maintenance 

• Total Project Cost is Comparable for Porous Asphalt with Reduced Stormwater 
Infrastructure VS. Standard Pavement Applications where Stormwater Infrastructure 
is Required  

• Materials Cost is ~20-25% More Than Traditional Asphalt  
• Long-term Maintenance is Required by Routine Quarterly Vacuum Sweeping 
• Sweeping Cost May Be Off-set by Reduced Deicing Costs 
• Repairs Can be Made with Standard Asphalt Not to Exceed 10% of Surface Area 

Design 
Criteria 

• Soil Permeability is Recommended Between 0.25-3.0 Inches Per Hour 
• Recommended Drainage Time of 24-48 Hours 
• Sub-Drains Should be Used Where Proper Drainage May be an Issue to Minimize 

Frost Damage 
• Most Appropriate for use with Low-Use Roadways and Parking Lots—Without a 

Modified Asphalt Binder   
• 3-5 Feet of Vertical Separation is Needed from Seasonal High Groundwater 
 
 
 
TYPICAL POROUS ASPHALT 
         CROSS-SECTION 
 
 
 

 

Additional 
Resources 

• The UNH Stormwater Center, Porous Asphalt Specs - General Porous Bituminous Paving 
and Groundwater Infiltration Beds, http://www.unh.edu/erg/cstev/   

• Federal Highway Administration (2006) Porous Pavement Fact Sheet 
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/ultraurb/3fs15.htm 

• Ferguson, B. (2005), Porous Pavements, CRC Press. 
• Porous Asphalt Pavements (2004) Information Series 131. The National Asphalt Pavement 

Association, Lanham, MD.  

 

4” thickness of ¾” crushed stone

4” of porous asphalt 

8-12” thickness of open graded 
reservoir subbase 

Soil permeability >0.5 in/hr

4” thickness of ¾”> crushed stone for frost protection



9,028

6,4941:

Map by NH GRANIT

Legend

Notes

Map Scale

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu

Map Generated: 10/30/2020

Polygons

State

County

City/Town

Stream Centerlines
Perennial Stream

Intermittent Stream

Artificial Paths

Water Bodies
Lake/Pond

Reservoir

Estuary

Swamp/Marsh

Other Water Features
River

Spillway

Inundation Area

Dam/Weir

Canal/Ditch

Rapids



9,028

6,4941:

Map by NH GRANIT

Legend

Notes

Map Scale

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu

Map Generated: 10/30/2020

Polygons

State

County

City/Town

Stream Centerlines
Perennial Stream

Intermittent Stream

Artificial Paths

Water Bodies
Lake/Pond

Reservoir

Estuary

Swamp/Marsh

Other Water Features
River

Spillway

Inundation Area

Dam/Weir

Canal/Ditch

Rapids

Wetlands
Estuarine and Marine Deepwater

Estuarine and Marine Wetland

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

Lake

Other

Riverine

NWIPlus
Estuarine and Marine Deepwater

Estuarine and Marine Wetland

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

Lake

Other

Riverine



9,028

6,4941:

Map by NH GRANIT

Legend

Notes

Map Scale

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu

Map Generated: 10/30/2020

Polygons

State

County

City/Town

Stream Centerlines
Perennial Stream

Intermittent Stream

Artificial Paths

Water Bodies
Lake/Pond

Reservoir

Estuary

Swamp/Marsh

Other Water Features
River

Spillway

Inundation Area

Dam/Weir

Canal/Ditch

Rapids

WAP 2020: Highest Ranked 
Wildlife Habitat

1 Highest Ranked Habitat in NH

2 Highest Ranked Habitat in Region

3 Supporting Landscape

WAP 2020: Wildlife Habitat Land 
Cover

Alpine

Appalachian oak-pine

Cliff and Talus slope

Coastal island and Rocky coast

Developed Impervious

Developed or Barren land

Dune

Floodplain forest

Grassland

Hemlock-hardwood-pine

High-elevation spruce-fir

Lowland spruce-fir

Northern hardwood-conifer

Northern swamp

Open water

Peatland

Pine barren

Rocky ridge

Salt marsh

Sand/Gravel

Temperate swamp

Marsh and shrub wetland



BY-LAWS OF THE EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

1 | P a g e   A p p r o v e d ,  O c t o b e r  9 t h ,  2 0 1 8  

 

Article I: Name and Location 
 

The name of this (voluntary, non-profit,) organization shall be the Exeter Conservation Commission (hereafter 
called The Commission). The principal office of The Commission shall be located at The Exeter Town Office 
Building, 10 Front Street, Exeter, New Hampshire. 
 

Article II: Authority 
Established in March 1965 by a vote at Exeter Town Meeting, the Commission derives its authority from State Law 
RSA 36-A and from the Town of Exeter Ordinances. Nothing in these by-laws is intended to conflict with these. 
 

Article III: Purposes 
 

1. To ensure the conservation and proper utilization of the natural resources and the protection of 
watershed resources of the Town of Exeter. 

2. To advise other Town boards and State agencies on conservation and natural resource matters as 
defined by local and state regulations. 

3. To acquire land for fee (full title) or through conservation easement for conservation purposes and to 
receive gifts of money or property in the name of the Town. This may include water resources. The 
Commission will then manage these areas.   

4. To manage duly authorized town forests. 
5. To conduct research into local land and water natural resources to ascertain their value for conservation 

purposes. 
6. To keep the public informed as to actions taken and lands available for public use. 
7. To intervene when appropriate within 10 days of a dredge and fill of wetlands application, and to 

investigate and report its findings and recommendations within 40 days to the NH Wetlands 
Board.(RSA 483A) 

8. To receive copies of sand and gravel excavation permit applications and make necessary comments 
and recommendations to the proper board.(RSA 155-E) 

9. To advise the Planning Board on Conditional Use Permits, Wetland Buffer Waivers and other natural 
resource matters as requested. 

10. To monitor open space and conservation lands, including easements for compliance with the deed. 
11. To conduct or sponsor activities which foster conservation education. 
12. To assist in the Town's Master Plan up-dates and to implement the actions dealing with natural 

resources. 
13. To attend workshops, informational meetings and conferences so that the Commission is adequately 

informed about conservation issues. 
  

Article IV: Membership 
 

1. Membership And Terms Of Office  

A. Regular Members: A full Commission shall consist of seven (7) regular members, appointed 
by the Board of Selectmen for three-year terms.  Terms shall be arranged so that 
approximately one-third of the members’ terms expire yearly.  Members may serve no more 
than two consecutive three-year terms and are eligible for alternate member position after 
maximum terms are served.  The appointment of members shall conform to terms and 
requirements of RSA 36-A.  

B. Alternates: The Board of Selectmen may appoint five (5) alternate members.  Upon 
designation of the Chair, alternate members may serve in place of a regular member in the 
event of absence or recusal. The terms for alternates shall be the same as for regular members.  

C. New members shall file an application with the Town Manager’s Office and will be contacted 
for an interview by the Board of Selectmen.  All members must be residents of Exeter. 



BY-LAWS OF THE EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

2 | P a g e   A p p r o v e d ,  O c t o b e r  9 t h ,  2 0 1 8  

 

D. The Natural Resource Planner participates as an advisor to the Commission but does not vote. 

2. Election Of Officers 
Officers for the Commission shall be elected each May for a term of one year and may serve consecutive  
terms. 
 

3. Absenteeism 
A. Members are expected to attend all monthly meetings unless the Chair is notified in advance. 

 
B. Unexcused absence from four meetings may result in a letter being sent to the regular member 

or alternate in question. If no reply is forthcoming in a reasonable amount of time (usually one 
month), the member will be requested to submit his or her resignation and the Selectmen will 
be so notified to select a replacement. 

 
Article V:  Responsibilities of Offices 

 
1. Chairperson 

A. It shall be the duty of the Chair, or his/her designate, to notify in advance all members of the 
Commission of any scheduled meeting. The Chair is also responsible for finalizing agenda for 
the meeting listing issues to be discussed. 
 

B. The Chair shall run the meeting and assign the floor to those speakers who request it. 
 

C. The Chair may take part in any discussions relative to the business at hand and will rule on 
any disputes that arise during debates. 
 

2. Vice-Chairperson 
A. The Vice-Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Commission in the absence of the Chair 

and shall perform all duties and have all powers of the Chair in case of temporary absence or 
incapacity of the Chair. 
 

3. Clerk 
A. In the absence of administrative staff, the Clerk shall keep an accurate record of the meetings 

and other proceedings of the Commission 
 

B. In accordance with RSA 91-A:2, a typed copy of the minutes shall be made available for 
public inspection not more than 5 business days after the meeting, and a copy brought to the 
Town Clerk’s Office. 

 
C. In the absence of administrative staff, the Clerk shall be responsible for correspondence 

designated by the Commission.   
 

4. Treasurer 
A. The Treasurer ensures all monies received by the Commission is accounted for and deposited 

into the Conservation Fund and disbursed from that account only with proper authorization by 
official vote of The Commission.   
 

B. The Treasurer shall report on the status of the Commissions monies at meetings of the 
Commission not less than quarterly and file a copy of that report with the Planning 
Department of the Town of Exeter. 

 
C. The Treasurer, with support of the Natural Resource Planner, is responsible for preparing the 

annual budget request.  
 



BY-LAWS OF THE EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

3 | P a g e   A p p r o v e d ,  O c t o b e r  9 t h ,  2 0 1 8  

 

 
 

Article VI:  Committees 
 

1. The Raynes Farm Stewardship Sub-Committee 
A. Objectives:  This committee is advisory to the Commission and shall: 

(i) Help identify and prioritize preservation and public use objectives for Commission 
review. 

(ii) The Conservation Commission serves as the primary contact person for inquiries 
regarding the property and may call upon the Stewardship Committee to advise, 
particularly in maintaining the Town’s relationship with the farmers who lease the 
farmland and barn. 

(iii) Review the LCHIP monitoring report, the farmer-Commission lease agreement, and the 
Raynes Farm Long Range Development Plan.  Any suggestions for changes that are 
agreed upon by the Committee shall be submitted to The Commission for their approval. 

(iv) Provide recommendations to the Conservation Commission on implementation of 
projects that have budgetary impacts. 

 
B. Membership: This committee shall consist of at least 5 members including 2 representatives from 

The Commission, a member of the Exeter Historical Society, a member of the Public Works 
Department and private citizens.  In addition, any individuals leasing the land will also be a part of 
the committee but will not vote when decisions concerning their lease are discussed.  Other 
members may be appointed by the Commission from the town at large with the goal of furthering 
the objectives of the Long Range Development Plan. 
 

C. Procedures:  The committee shall elect its own chair annually.  The committee shall meet at least 
annually for the purposes of reviewing the LCHIP monitoring report, the Farmer-Commission 
lease agreement, and the progress with projects identified in the Raynes Farm Long Range 
Development Plan. 
 

2.  Trails Sub-Committee 
A. Objectives:  This committee is advisory to The Commission and shall: 

(i) Oversee the creation and maintenance of trails on Conservation Lands in 
accordance with the trail management plan and advise The Commission on actions 
that need to be taken. 

(ii) Submit a list of recommended trail projects to the Commission each year in order 
to meet budget planning schedules. 
 

B. Membership:  This committee shall consist of at least 2 representatives from The Commission.  
Other members may include both residents and non-resident users of the trail network with the 
goal of having representation from a diversity of recreational uses and furthering the intent of the 
Trail Plan.  
 

C. Procedures: The committee shall meet at least 2 times a year to identify and prioritize trail projects 
needs and as needed to further the objectives of the trail management plan.   
 

3. Ad Hoc Committees 
A. Ad Hoc committees may be appointed by the Chair of the Commission as the need arises. At least 

one member of the Commission shall serve on each committee. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



BY-LAWS OF THE EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

4 | P a g e   A p p r o v e d ,  O c t o b e r  9 t h ,  2 0 1 8  

 

Article VII: Operating Procedures 
1. Meetings 

A. Public notice of Commission Meetings must be posted in two public places, such as the Town 
Offices, the Town’s website, or the Library 24 hours prior to the meeting. The notice shall be 
published according to State law RSA 91, a copy of which is available in the Conservation 
Commission Handbook. 
 

B. At the discretion of the Chair there shall be not less than one regular meeting of the 
Commission each month. Such meetings will be held in the Town Offices on the second 
Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. unless otherwise specified by the Commission or the 
Chair prior to the second Tuesday.  

 
C. Special meetings may be held, if necessary, at the discretion of the Chair. They may also be 

called by the Commission on a majority vote of the members for a special purpose. At any 
special meeting, no business other than that specified by the Commission may be considered. 

 
D. Individual notification of each Commission member by the Chair shall be given not less than 

five days before the date of any special meeting. 
 

E. A majority of the members of the Commission then in office shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of any business. 

 
F. It is the responsibility of the Chair to convey to the appropriate State, County or Town board 

or commission recommendations passed by the Commission. 
 

G. No discussion of action items would continue after 10:00 pm unless otherwise voted on by the 
Commission. 
 
 

2. Public Hearings 
A. A public hearing must be held before any money from Conservation funds is used to acquire 

"any interest in real property"(RSA 36-A:5 II). A public hearing may be held to solicit 
opinions on other issues deemed important by the Commission. 
 

B. Notice for such a meeting must be posted in two public places and in a newspaper "of general 
circulation in the municipality" at least 10 days before the hearing, counting neither the day of 
posting or the day of the hearing. (RSA 675:7) 

 
C. Conduct of the meeting should follow the procedure outlined on p. III-4 of the Handbook for 

Municipal Conservation Commissions in New Hampshire. 
 

D. Minutes of the meeting should include the members of the commission present, those who 
testified and a summary of their positions. These minutes should be distributed in the same 
manner as regular minutes, described in Article V, Section 3B. 
 

3. Dredge and Fill Applications 
A. Upon receipt of a copy of an application to dredge and fill wetlands from the Town Clerk, per 

RSA 482-A:3 (except for agricultural and minimum impact applications as noted in D below), 
the Natural Resource Planner on behalf of the Chair shall send a letter of intervention to the 
wetlands board asking for an additional 30 days for review if a regularly scheduled meeting 
will not meet review deadlines. 
 



BY-LAWS OF THE EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

5 | P a g e   A p p r o v e d ,  O c t o b e r  9 t h ,  2 0 1 8  

 

B. The Commission may hold public hearings, public informational meetings and/or conduct site 
walks as part of its review. The application must be discussed, and a decision made as to its 
impact, at a regular meeting of the Commission. 

 
C. A final letter of recommendations shall be sent to the wetlands board. 

 
D. Upon receipt of agricultural wetlands or minimal impact applications, the Commission shall 

review the application and sign the supplied forms in accordance with State procedures if 
expedited review is supported by the Commission. 
 

4. Review of Sand and Gravel Excavations 
A. Upon receipt of a copy of an application for a permit to excavate, per RSA 155-E, the 

Commission will review the application as to its impact on the natural resources of the area. 
 

B. The Commission may hold public hearings, public informational meetings and/or conduct site 
walks as part of its review. The application must be discussed, and a decision made as to its 
impact, at a regular meeting of the Commission. 

 
C. A final letter of recommendations shall be sent to the Planning Board. 

 
5. Request from Planning Board, Zoning Board or Technical Review Committee for Advice or Review. 

A. Upon receipt of a Conditional Use Permit application or request for input or review by any Town 
board or committee, the Commission shall review the request and respond appropriately. 
 

B. For projects that appear before the Commission prior to other land use boards, The Commission 
shall provide written recommendations to those Boards for consideration. 
 

6. Conceptual Discussions  
A. Prior to a formal application submission, the Commission may meet, if requested, with a potential 

applicant who anticipates submitting a formal application for review by the Commission.  The 
purpose of the meeting is to generally discuss the project concept and any potential issues in order 
to help the applicant revise and improve their application before it is submitted. 

B. Such consultation shall not bind either the applicant or the Commission, and statements made by 
the Commission members shall not be the basis for disqualifying said members or invalidating any 
future action taken. The Commission and the applicant may discuss proposals in conceptual form 
only and neither the applicant nor the Commission shall be bound by the discussions. 

 
6.7. By-laws 

A. These By-laws shall be reviewed annually and revised as needed by a majority vote of the 
Commission.  



����������	
	���	���
������	 ����	��
������������
�

����	
���	��	�
�������
���	���
��	������
�	���

������	���������� !"# 
"!$!$

��	���	���	���
 ������	�%��
������	�
&��'(!$!$

)�����
�$ *+  $,( -./01234�567803-
./01234�5.70

96:10/�;<;<=>?0
@:0:�;<;<�ABCD

E.@@0:�=>?0@F0F�;<;
<G07.H@H@1�;<;<�9

6:10/-2770@/
, !$$I��"J��	��(�K�

L �$$$
L#,!M,$

L$M$$
L+*NM,$�	��������I	

��	
��'�OL *��	�������
���P��
�+��"�
�

, ! $I��"J��	��(��	
��

L$
L$M$$

L$M$$
L$M$$����	��	��Q�
	��

K�����������
�	��	��
,!!$$�Q�)

L! R
L$M$$

L$M$$
L! RM$$

,!! $% 	�����	
L, 

L$M$$
L$M$$

L, M$$
,,$**�������
'�I	�

���	�
L,$$

LS$M#N
L#$$M$$

L $SM+#���	�����
�	�
���	�	�
����
�T�)�
�����


	������!$!$�I������
�		
�L,$�����,�

��
�	����	�	�
�
,,$, ����	���
����U

����)������
��
���
L �#,$

L+, M +
L#,$M$$

L#*RMR*���P���
����
�������	���
����U����)

�����V�������%��
����
�%���
	����	M��

���	��������������	�
'�
����
�������		����
�����

������	�"��
	�����
,,$,R���
���
�I	����

	�
L �$$$

L$M$$
L �$$$M$$

L$M$$I�����
�������'
�	��Q�����	�	�
�

,,$RRW�	�
L �$$$

LN$$M$$
L$M$$

L#$$M$$����P�����
��X
�����	��
	��������Y�
���

�T���U)��ZL ,$[���)
���ZLN$$[��I�U ��

ZL ,$[
,,$S �����
���"�����

���
L*,$

L! $M$$
L$M$$

L!*$M$$�������������P
������	�P	������"����

�
���	�����	������	��Z�
)���L!+$��L S $�

�
�	�����\�����[
,, N U	���"K�P������


��	�
L,$

L$M$$
L$M$$

L,$M$$���	���������
� ��	������
��	�
'������	

�����	�
,,!!*K��
��	

L!$
L$M$$

L$M$$
L!$M$$

,,!*N�	���
�'����W		
��

L#$
L$M$$

L$M$$
L#$M$$�		������	���
�'

�����		���Z
'������'�����

���������[

,,!,*�������	�%���
��

L �R,$
L$M$$

L �R!,M$$
L!,M$$% ������J��
	�

�K	��'��Q����	�����%����
��	

	�L �R,$

B2/.E
]̂_̀abc<<

];_<<dc<e
]e_d̂c̀<<

];_<ebcb̂
f/g03�hii26@/Fj

9.E.@i0j
)�����
�(S$N*R

$���������������	���

����%���
�����

L �++SM!R
)�����
�(S*+,�

���	���
��������
L,+�SR#MS*K��������


�����������	��)��	���
��ZLR$��L ,$[

)�����
�(RN#S�
��	�
�'�)�����


L !�+SNM**
kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk
kkkkkk

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk
W��	�I���
����	����	�

W�
	



Modified 11/2/2020

CC Dashboard & Project Tracker
Property Management: Raynes Property Management: Invasives Property Management: Other Application Review

DPW made minor repairs to button up barn 

for winter

Carlos led workday with 5 UNH students for 

invasive removal at Henderson Swasey McDonell ‐ reports of dirt bikes

Riverwoods easement should go to our 

legal council soon. 

Ben Anderson removed back field 

encroachments Purchased 2nd weed wrench. McDonell ‐gate seasonal closure

PEA 2 Gilman expedited app accepted 

by NHDES so expedited review has 

begun.

Ongoing: O'Hearn contract for front field 

encroachment removal

Game camera monitoring under 

101 Rte 27 ongoing

Nelson Dr modified application and 

moved impacts out of buffer.  

Construction moving ahead.

WordBarn donated an additional $120

Report of beaver activity increasing 

at Stone property (see corresp from 

TCregan)

PEA CUP for dorm @ Fisher loc 

approved by PB

The Supreme Court affirmed the 

Planning Board’s actions in the Rose 

Farm development.  

To Do: Barn clean up Lyons subdivision approved by PB

To Do: Interpretive Signs

To Do: Building Assement update, LCHIP 

grant application

To Do: Spring monitoring plantings. 

Fall remove pins before mowing 

Morrissette

To Do: Replace kiosk sign

Trails Outreach Other

Added map to Industrial Drive kiosk Star watch cancelled

BRC voted in favor of CC budget 

request. CIP sched for 11/17.  PB 

increased CC Conservation Fund 

request to $75K

Dave purchased wood‐‐company donated full 

amount of materials Considering Winter Solstice Celebration

Monitoring ongoing.  All reports to 

others complete but 

Chamberlin/Linberg.

Linden Commons HOA joint trail work 

request Kids Afterschool Hiking program

Inquiry from Parks on Wilderness First Aid

Inquiry from Parks on Winter Hike program

To Do: Smith Page Sign, install stepping stone 

crossing & marsh overlook??

To Do: Blaze red trail

To Do: Reinstall Dolloff Easement sign & 

refresh blazes

To Do: Install junction markers and mini‐

kiosks @ Oaklands To Do: Trail passport 



1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission 
October 13, 2020 
Virtual Meeting 
Draft Minutes 

 
Call to Order 

 
1.  Introduction of Members Present (by Roll Call)  
 
Present at tonight’s meeting were by roll call, Chair Andrew Koff, Vice-Chair Trevor Mattera, Sally Ward, 
Clerk, Dave Short, Treasurer, Bill Campbell, Carlos Guindon, Ginny Raub, Donald Clement, (Alternate), 
Alyson Eberhardt, Nick Campion (Alternate), Kristen Osterwood (Alternate), and Kristen Murphy, Natural 
Resource Planner. 
 
Members present indicated there was no one else present in the room with them during this meeting. 
 
Absent:  Lindsey White (Alternate), Julie Gilman (Select Board Liaison), Daryl Browne, Select Board 
Alternate Liaison 
 
Mr. Koff called the meeting to order at 7 PM.  
 
Mr. Koff read the meeting preamble indicated that an emergency exists and the provisions of RSA 91-
A:2 III (b) are being invoked.  As federal, state and local officials have determined gatherings of ten or 
more people pose a substantial risk to the community and the meeting imperative to the continued 
operation of Town and government and services which are vital to public, health, safety and confidence.  
This meeting will be conducted without a quorum physically present in the same location and welcome 
members of the public accessing the meeting remotely. 
 
2.  Public Comment (7:00 PM) 
 
Rebeccah Moore expressed her appreciation for considering their comments on a previous case and 
requested copies of the recommendation to the Planning Board and plans to restore cut trees.  Mr. Koff 
indicated a letter could be submitted to the Commission and to Doug Eastman. 
 
Action Items 
 
1.  Request for removal of tree on Raynes Farm property 
 
Ben Anderson indicated the DOT determined a tree needed to be removed on the border of roads.  The 
Town Tree Warden agreed.  The tree would be removed at Mr. Anderson’s expense.  The request was 
brought before the Stewardship Committee who had no objections. 



2 
 

MOTION:  Mr. Campbell motioned, after reviewing this request, to approve removal of the tree.  Ms. 
Ward seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – aye, Campbell – aye, 
Guindon – aye, Ward – aye, Raub – aye, Short – aye.  Motion passed 7-0-0. 
 
2.  Shoreland Conditional Use Permit application for PEA for repairs to Hill Bridge, enhancing scour 
resistance, repair riverbank erosion and minor landscaping at the ends of the bridge 
Tax Map 71-119 and 83-1 
 
Mr. Koff indicated the application is for a Shoreland CUP and recommendation for support for their 
State Wetland and Shoreland applications. 
 
Mark Leighton indicated the bridge is over 100 years old and needs maintenance and erosion control. 
 
James Turner of Stephens Associates Consulting Engineers, LLC. proposed structural repairs, erosion 
repair and scour resistance.  There is not much riprap left.  The project has been reviewed by Fish & 
Game and the Heritage Bureau.  Construction will be done next summer.  Footpaths will be stabilized 
with stone dust pavement.  There is a planting plan to replant the bank when finished.  The coffer dam 
will be used for the filtration system. 
 
Ms. Eberhardt indicated the alternate access direction proposed by Mr. Leighton is a good idea.  The 
delineation while appropriate is dated two years ago. 
 
Mr. Clement noted they appeared before the Squamscott River Advisory Committee recently and there 
will be equipment in the riverbed during work. 
 
Mr. Koff reviewed the CUP criteria:  use can’t negatively affect water quality, stabilization and erosion 
control, no disposal of waste on site, no discharge, no detriment to wildlife habitat.  Fish & Game and 
the Heritage Bureau found no impacts. 
 
Mr. Koff noted there was no new use and no increase impervious.  They are repairing and stabilizing.  
The use is consistent with the intent of the Shoreland article. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned, after reviewing this application, that there is no objection to approval, 
including recommendation on signage and alternate access as proposed.  Mr. Guindon seconded the 
motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – aye, Campbell – recused, Clement – aye, 
Guindon – aye, Ward – aye, Raub – aye, Short – aye.  Motion passed 7-0-0. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Guindon, after reviewing this application, motioned to have no objection to the State 
Wetland Expedited Application.  Ms. Ward seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  
Mattera – aye, Campbell – recused, Clement - aye, Guindon – aye, Ward – aye, Raub – aye, Short – aye.  
Motion passed 7-0-0. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned, after reviewing this application, to have no objection to the State 
Shoreland Permit for the application as proposed.  Mr. Guindon seconded the motion.  A roll call vote 



3 
 

was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – aye, Campbell – recused, Clement – aye, Guindon – aye, Ward – aye, 
Raub – aye, Short – aye.  Motion passed 7-0-0. 
 
3.  Conceptual discussion for the construction of an additional parking/car storage lot for the McFarland 
Ford Dealership on 110 Holland Way 
Tax Map 51-17 
 
Ms. Murphy indicated the applicant wishes to present the project for feedback in consideration of 
submitting a wetland Conditional Use Permit. 
 
Wayne Morrill indicated there will be 136 spaces for new vehicles and commercial grade vehicles. 
 
Jim Gove presented the project is for construction of an additional lot for the McFarland Ford Dealership 
on its 22-acre parcel which is encumbered by prime wetlands buffer.  The same impacts for access.  
Impact to Town buffer rather than State buffer.  The Conservation easement could be expanded as 
mitigation. 
 
Mr. Guindon asked if it drains into the Town water supply and Mr. Gove indicated yes, it eventually gets 
there. 
 
Mr. Clement indicated a locus map would be helpful and noted he is concerned about the adjacent 
parcel (Dearborn Brook). 
 
Ms. Ward recommended coming back next month to address their concerns. 
 
4.  Conceptual discussion in association with a Conditional Use Permit for clean-up and construction of a 
residential multi-family unit within the prime wetland buffer and structural setback at 32 Charter Street 
Tax Map 82-36 
 
Ms. Murphy indicated the applicant wishes to present the project for feedback in consideration of 
submitting a wetland Conditional Use Permit for construction of a multi-family unit within the prime 
wetland buffer and structural setback. 
 
Mr. Koff indicated there was a site walk today. 
 
Jim Gove of Gove Environmental Services indicated there is a lot of debris and there is impact to the 
buffer and prime wetland.  Looking for Commission to work with us and not hold the 125’ setback.  Mr. 
Clement noted a lot of illegal dumping has gone on in that lot. 
 
Christian Smith of Beals Associates indicated there would be 12 units and the area would be cleaned up 
and the buffer reduced to 50 feet.  There would be drive-under garages with 18-foot wide access. 
 
Mr. Campbell noted if the Town had to clean the lot up it would be a huge expense. 
 



4 
 

 
 
Ms. Raub asked if there would potentially be 48 people living on just an acre with no green space?  Mr. 
Smith noted it was early in the process. 
 
Mr. Mattera noted the Commission is willing to work it out.  Probably could get 50-100 feet because it is 
a redevelopment. 
 
5.  Expense Requests 
 
Ms. Murphy noted the Commission needs to identify any end of season requests ASAP to present to the 
Budget Committee as the Commission currently has low expenditures. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Campbell motioned to authorize up to $300 in expenditures for tools.  Mr. Koff seconded 
the motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – aye, Campbell – aye, Guindon – aye, Ward 
– aye, Raub – aye, Short – aye.  Motion passed 7-0-0. 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Ward motioned to authorize up to $100 for Rayne’s Farm Kiosk replacement.  Ms. Raub 
seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – aye, Campbell – recused, 
Clement – aye, Guindon – aye, Ward – aye, Raub – aye, Short – aye.  Motion passed 7-0-0. 
 
MOTION:  Ms. Ward motioned to authorize up to $200 for wood supplies for trail repair.  Mr. Short 
seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – aye, Campbell – recused, 
Clement – aye, Guindon – aye, Ward – aye, Raub – aye, Short – aye.  Motion passed 7-0-0. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff motioned to authorize up to $300 for outreach events and the transfer of funds for 
repair of siding.  Mr. Campbell seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – 
aye, Campbell – recused, Clement – aye, Guindon – aye, Ward – aye, Raub – aye, Short – aye.  Motion 
passed 7-0-0. 
 
6.  Committee Reports 
 
 a.  Property Management 
 

Ms. Murphy provided the Commission with an update list on activity at Raynes Farm, Irvine, 
Morrissette, White Perry, McDonnell, DPW-LCHIP, Rte. 27/101 Game Cameras, Oaklands, Linden 
Commons (joint trail care day), and Industrial Drive kiosk installation 

 
 b.  Trails 
 

Mr. Koff noted next month there will be a discussion on electric bike use on trails. 
 
Ms. Murphy noted Pollinator Pathways has had decent success and will reach out to residences 
and business. 



5 
 

 
 c.  Outreach Events 
 

Ms. Ward indicated the Sky Watch event at Raynes Farm was cancelled. 
 
Mr. Koff noted the Climate Forum last week was impressive. 
 
Mr. Campion indicated there were a couple of walks with two great groups and good weather. 
 
Ms. Murphy noted an educational program was coming up on the 17th with Ben & Sarah 
Anderson on wildlife.  There could be a winter solstice event at Raynes Farm. 
 
Ms. Murphy noted they are looking for volunteers for Hazardous Waste Day at the DPW. 

 
7.  Approval of Minutes:  September 8, 2020 
 
Edits were recommended. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Campbell motioned to accept the September 8, 2020 minutes as amended.  Ms. Ward 
seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken  Koff – aye,  Mattera – aye, Campbell – aye, Guindon – 
aye, Ward – abstain, Raub – aye, Short – abstain.  Motion passed 5-0-2. 
 
8.  Correspondence 
  
9.  Other Business 
 
10. Next Meeting:  Date Scheduled:  November 10, 2020. 
 
Adjournment 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Koff moved to adjourn at 9:50 PM.  Ms. Ward seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was 
taken, all were in favor, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Daniel Hoijer, Recording Secretary 



Draft Minutes 
 

, 
Exeter Conservation Commission  

Site Walk, 32 Charter Street  
 Tax Map Parcel 82-36 

October 13, 2020 
5:30 pm 

 
Members In Attendance: Drew Koff, Carlos Guindon, Sally Ward, Bill Campbell and Dave Short 
 
Also Present:  The applicant’s representatives Jim Gove, and Christian Smith. 
  
On October 13th the Conservation Commission conducted a site walk at the aforementioned property to 
review a proposal for clean-up and restoration of the prime wetland buffer and a conceptual discussion of 
a multi-family unit within the prime wetland buffer and structural setback.  After a brief presentation from 
the applicant and their representatives, the group walked throughout the buffer area reviewing wetland 
flagging and the area proposed for development.   
 
The walk concluded at 6:05 pm. 
 
Kristen Murphy 
Natural Resource Planner 

 


	Date:  Nov 5th, 2020



